1989

Knight Adjustment Bureau v. Robert J. Williams, James R. Williams : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

1. Jurisdiction. The Utah Court of Appeals has jurisdiction to consider and hear this appeal pursuant to the provisions of Section 78-2-2 Utah Code Annotated, as amended, and Rule 3 of the Rules of the Supreme Court of Utah, and pursuant to an Order of the Supreme Court of Utah the case was "poured-over to the Court of Appeals" the 29th day of June, 1989.

NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This appeal is from a judgment signed the 31st day of January, 1989, entered the 1st day of February, 1989, (signed by the Honorable Douglas L Cornaby, judge in and for the Second Judicial District Court) which judgment was granted pursuant to Plaintiff's Verified Motion for Entry of Judgment without hearing on defendant James Williams' objection to plaintiff's Motion, and which judgment was subsequently amended the 20th day of June, 1989,

pursuant to plaintiff's Rule 60(a) Motion to Amend. Appellants seek review of the judgment and the proceedings leading up to the granting of that judgment and the proceedings subsequent thereto resulting in the amendment of the judgment; the specific rulings of the court being appealed include the Judgment granted the 31st day of January, 1989; the Order granting plaintiff's motion to amend, entered by the trial court the 21st day of June, 1989; the Amended Judgment granted the 20th day and entered the 21st day of June, 1989; the trial court's ruling on defendant's motions subsequent to the entry of the Amended Judgment identified by the trial court as a "Ruling On Motion To Strike" dated the 27th day of July, 1989 and the Order based thereon dated the 16th day of August, 1989.

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

(1) Whether the Court abused its discretion, denied defendant due process or otherwise improperly compelled defendant James Williams to elect between the risk of contempt of court and a jail sentence, or stipulate that he had signed the questioned document.

(2) Whether the Court abused its discretion, denied defendant due process or otherwise improperly granted judgment on plaintiff's motion where the plaintiff had failed to reduce the agreement to writing or otherwise obtain a court order effecting the agreement, particularly where the oral agreement was incomplete

and where plaintiff continued to identify the defendant as Robert Williams.

(3) Whether the Court had jurisdiction to grant an order or judgment against Robert Williams.

(4) Whether the Court could amend a judgment as against a party that the original judgment was not sought against.

(5) Whether the Court abused its discretion in failing to consider defendants' response to plaintiff's motion to amend.

(6) Whether the Court abused its discretion in signing the amended judgment without considering the objections and the Rule 60 Motion filed relative thereto.

(7) Whether the Court abused its discretion or alternatively whether it is a denial of due process to deny a party against whom a final order is being sought an opportunity for oral argument and/or a public hearing.

(8) Whether the Court committed error in ruling that the "error" of the original judgment was clerical in nature when the original motion seeking judgment was directed to Robert Williams and not James Williams.

DETERMINATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS OR STATUTES

(See Addendum for verbatim text)

(1) Casentini v. Hines, 625 P.2d 1174 (Nevada 1981)

(2) Dove v. Cude, 710 P.2d 170 (Utah 1985)

(3) Hiltsley v. Ryder, 738 P.2d 1024 (Utah 1987)

(4) Kinsman v. Kinsman, 748 P.2d 210 (Utah App. 1988)

(5) Olson v. Idaho Dept. of Water Resources, 666 P.2d 188 (Idaho 1983)

(6) Rizzo v. State, 497 N.Y.S.2d 417 (A.D.2 Dept. 1986)

(7) The Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

(8) The Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America.

(9) Article I Section 1 of the Constitution of the State of Utah.

(10) Article I Section 7 of the Constitution of the State of Utah.

(11) Rule 36 Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

(12) Rule 37(c) Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

(13) Rule 54 Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

(14) Rule 60(a) Utah Rules of Civil Procedure.

(15) Rule 4-501 of the Utah Code of Judicial Administration.

(16) Rule 4-501(3) of the Utah Code of Judicial Administration.

(17) Rule 4-504 of the Utah Code of Judicial Administration.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

I. NATURE OF THE CASE

The case below arose out of a claim against Robert L. Williams alleging that he was liable for the "open account" debt of the corporation "K & W Linoleum Shop, Inc." by virtue of an "agreement" Robert Williams had allegedly executed, which document plaintiff had attached to its original complaint (Record of proceedings in the trial court, at page 3; hereafter referred to as "Record at

3"). The case against Robert Williams was dismissed and plaintiff proceeded against the son of Robert Williams, James R. Williams, on the same claim. At the time for pretrial, James Williams and counsel were admonished and advised by the court that if James persisted in denying that he had signed the "agreement" and plaintiff proved at trial he had signed the agreement (which signature plaintiff had alleged initially was that of Robert Williams, which is illegible and was purportedly signed in 1979 some nine years earlier, which James Williams had already denied in responding to Requests For Admissions and which he told the court that he did not recall signing the subject document) the court "guaranteed" jail would be imposed (Transcript of April 25, 1988 pretrial, at page 11 lines 8-9; hereafter "Pretrial at 11, L 8-9").

Thereafter, at the time set for trial, a stipulation of sorts was reached. The documents formalizing the stipulation were never completed. Plaintiff submitted a motion seeking judgment based upon defendant "Robert L. Williams" default; defendant James Williams objected to judgment, denied being in default and tendered continued performance of the agreement even though plaintiff had failed to complete the documents; and without a hearing or notice that the matter was being submitted for decision, the court granted judgment against Robert L. Williams. Subsequent proceedings resulted in the trial court's amendment of the judgment to be against James R. Williams.

II. COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS

The case below was originally commenced by plaintiff's filing an action against Robert L. Williams; the complaint incorporated an "agreement" allegedly executed by Robert L. Williams titled "application for credit" and was apparently for the benefit of a corporation identified as K & W Linoleum Shop, Inc. The basis for plaintiff's cause of action was one based upon a debt allegedly incurred by the corporation (hereafter referred to as "K & W") pursuant to an open account, and one for which plaintiff alleged Robert L. Williams had given a personal guarantee (the "agreement" attached to plaintiff's complaint, hereafter referred to as "agreement"). Plaintiff alleged that Robert L. Williams was liable for the debt of "K & W" in a sum in excess of \$30,000.00.

The complaint was later dismissed and plaintiff's motion to amend to name James R. Williams as defendant was granted; substituting James R. Williams as the party plaintiff was claiming was liable for the open account debt of "K & W" based upon the same document, the "agreement" attached to the original complaint.

At the time set for trial, the parties discussed settlement and an understanding was arrived at, which settlement amounted to defendant James R. Williams' agreement to pay plaintiff the total sum of \$16,601.50 over a two year period, the unpaid balance to carry interest at 11% and monthly payments estimated to be \$500.00 per month (Transcript of proceedings on the 16th day of September, 1988, at page 3 lines 8 through 20; hereafter referred to as Trial-T at 3, L 8-20). Some details of the "stipulation" remained to be

worked out and there were multiple recesses wherein the trial court retired to permit the parties to negotiate further; i. e. at page 6 line 25 (Trial-T) the court states: "Let me get out of your negotiation. You chat with each other. Let me know when you're ready for me to come back in."

The September 16 proceeding concluded with plaintiff's counsel representing to the court that she would "draw the documents." (Trial-T at 7, L 24) Thereafter plaintiff's counsel submitted multiple drafts of a stipulation purportedly representing that reached in court; in addition to calculation errors (or, at the least, conflicts between counsel as to the correct amount of the monthly payments) plaintiff's drafts all incorrectly identified the defendant party as "Robert L. Williams" who is the father of James R. Williams. Even though James Williams had already tendered \$5,000.00 toward the settlement, for very obvious reasons counsel for defendants could not agree to or execute a stipulation binding Robert instead of James Williams.

Thereafter, plaintiff filed a verified motion seeking judgment against Robert L. Williams, defendant objected, the court granted plaintiff's motion and signed a judgment and both defendants joined in an appeal therefrom. Plaintiff subsequently moved the Supreme Court to amend the judgment based upon Rule 60(a) Utah Rules of Civil Procedure and the Supreme Court remanded the case to the trial court to allow plaintiff to seek the relief requested pursuant to Rule 60(a). In the meantime the Supreme Court caused the case to be poured over to the Court of Appeals.

On remand to the trial court, plaintiff filed the Rule 60 motion and defendants filed a response, asserting, inter alia, that the judgment should not be amended. (Record at 65-68) The trial court granted plaintiff's motion and signed an amended judgment against James Williams without hearing. Defendant submitted a Rule 60(b) Motion along with other pleadings seeking relief from the amended judgment and a hearing on the matters raised, which motions were denied.

III. DISPOSITION AT TRIAL COURT

Judgment was entered against Robert L. Williams the 31st day of January, 1989 and subsequently amended to be against James R. Williams the 21st day of June, 1989.

IV. STATEMENT OF FACTS

(1) On or about May 21, 1986, plaintiff commenced the above entitled action against Robert L. Williams, alleging inter alia that Robert L. Williams had executed an agreement to "guarantee" the payment of the debts of a third-party K & W Linoleum Inc., to Robinson Distributing Co., Inc. (Record 1-2).

(2) On or about the 13th day of August, 1987 the Second Judicial District Court, per the Honorable Douglas L. Cornaby ordered the dismissal of plaintiff's causes of action against Robert L. Williams and granted leave to plaintiff to file an amended complaint against James R. Williams alleging that he had signed the "guarantee." (Both defendants have and continue to deny the document purportedly executed in 1979 constituted a guarantee

or agreement to pay the debts of K & W Linoleum, Inc.)(Record 9-11).

(3) That at pre-trial before the Honorable Douglas L Cornaby on the 25th day of April, 1988, the Court informed James R. Williams personally and his counsel that despite defendant's denial that he had executed the document that plaintiff alleges constitutes a "guarantee;" that if the defendant persisted in requiring the plaintiff to prove that the signature it had initially alleged was Robert Williams was that of James Williams, that "I want to guarantee that you, as counsel, you may go to jail..." (Transcript page 11, Line 9, April 25, 1988 pre-trial.)

(4) That based upon the Court's threatening contempt and jail if defendant failed to prevail on the issue of the identity of the person signing the subject document some nine years prior, defendant subsequently and reluctantly withdrew his denial relative thereto and by way of a pre-trial order stipulated that he signed the subject document.(Record 30-32).

(5) That at the time set for trial the parties then involved in the action, Knight Adjustment Bureau, Robinson Distributing Co., Inc. and James R. Williams reached an understanding described as a "stipulation," the general nature of which was put on the record orally in fragments broken by further discussion, modification and off-the-record negotiations. (Trial Transcript).

(6) That as a result of the understanding it was agreed that the case be settled upon terms and conditions that were

understood in theory but not in detail: i.e. an approximate monthly payment over a specific time period was to be made but the exact amount of the monthly payments was subject to calculation. (Trial Transcript).

(7) Plaintiff was to prepare the documents that would set forth with specificity the "stipulation" together with an appropriate order for the court. (Trial at 7).

(8) Plaintiff failed to accurately prepare a written stipulation consistent with the oral stipulation, including initially an error in calculating the payment amounts and most significantly identifying the subject defendant as Robert L. Williams who had been dismissed from the lawsuit more than a year prior, which errors were repeatedly pointed out to counsel for plaintiff. (Record 36-37, 40-41).

(9) Defendant James R. Williams made an initial payment of \$5,000.00 despite the failure of plaintiff to prepare an accurate written stipulation, to demonstrate a good faith effort to perform according to the agreement: (Record 36-37, 38-39).

(10) That despite the failure of plaintiff to prepare the documents as plaintiff had stipulated to preparing, and despite the lack of a written stipulation or other documentation setting forth payment amounts and due dates, plaintiff filed a "Verified Motion For Entry of Judgment" seeking entry of judgment for the amount prayed for in the complaint based on defendant's failure to timely pay pursuant to the "stipulation" reached in court. A copy of that motion is included in the addendum hereto. (Record 38-39).

(11) That defendant James R. Williams responded by filing an Objection to plaintiff's motion, filed the 27th day of January, 1989; defendant's objection is included in the addendum hereto. (Record 36-37).

(12) That the Court apparently granted plaintiff's motion and signed a judgment against Robert Williams the 31st day of January, 1989, and same was filed the 1st day of February, 1989.

(13) That plaintiff rejected further tender of payments pursuant to the oral stipulation.

(14) That plaintiff filed a Motion to amend judgment pursuant to Rule 60(a) Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, alleging that there was a "clerical" error in the original judgment. (Record 54).

(15) That defendants filed a Response to plaintiff's Motion to amend and objected to such amendment on the grounds, inter alia, that the "error" was not "clerical" but substantive, and that no verified motion had been filed against James Williams. (Record 56-58).

(16) That on May 26, 1989 the Court ruled that the "attorneys for the defendant, James R. Williams, do not object to the amendment" and granted the motion to amend. (Record 61).

(17) That defendants timely submitted, on June 15th, 1989, an Objection to the proposed judgment submitted by plaintiff's counsel; a Rule 60(b) Motion and a Memorandum in support of defendants' Objection and Motion were submitted concurrently with the Objection. (Record 63-68).

(18) That the Court executed the proposed judgment on the 20th day of June without further proceedings, hearing or notice to the parties. (Record 70).

(19) That no notice of entry of judgment thereafter was served in contradiction of Rule 58A of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure and Rule 4-504 of the Rules of Judicial Administration.

(20) That defendants' Objection and Rule 60(b) Motion, together with defendants' Motion to Strike plaintiff's response to the objection and Rule 60(b) motion (as non-responsive), were denied pursuant to the trial court's ruling the 27th day of July 1989.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Defendant James R. Williams was denied due process of law at several stages of the proceedings below, his arguments were either ignored or overlooked, his pleadings were either ignored or disregarded, the trial court appears to have made some unfounded or unsupported conclusions about the merits of James Williams' defenses and accordingly denied James Williams an opportunity to be fairly heard. The trial court seemed at several stages of the proceedings to be unfamiliar with both the substantive and the procedural aspects of the case, including confusion as to the identity of parties involved at the April 1988 pretrial, the nature of plaintiff's claims (the court seemed to overlook that plaintiff was alleging an obligation to pay the debt of a third, corporate party) and the nature of the defenses raised. Commencing with the

court threatening the sanction of jail on issues that defendant James Williams might fail to prevail on at trial, the court conveyed to James Williams that it strongly favored the claims of plaintiff.

When plaintiff alleged that defendant Robert Williams was in default of a stipulation reached in court the day scheduled for trial, the trial court granted plaintiff's motion without reading or considering the objections raised by defendants, on the fourth day after defendants filed their response, without notice to defendants that the matter had been submitted for decision and without allowing defendants an opportunity to request a hearing.

When the matter was remanded to the trial court, to allow the plaintiff to request relief pursuant to Rule 60(a) to amend the judgment because of a "clerical" error, the trial court again either did not read or consider the response of defendants, granted plaintiff's motion without notice that the matter was submitted for decision and without opportunity for defendants to request a hearing. Pursuant thereto, the trial court granted judgment against James R. Williams based upon a verified motion against Robert L. Williams, which motion the trial court later describes also as a "clerical error."

At the time the parties appeared for trial and a "stipulation" was reached, the 16th day of September, 1988, law and motion practice was still governed by the former Rules of Practice; subsequent thereto and prior to the plaintiff's filing of a verified motion seeking judgment the rules set forth in the Utah

Code of Judicial Administration took effect, particularly Rule 4-501 and more specifically Rule 4-501(9) which allows the resisting party ten days in which to request a hearing after the clerk has been notified to submit the matter for decision.

ARGUMENT

POINT I: THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN GRANTING PLAINTIFF'S VERIFIED MOTION FOR JUDGMENT

The parties appeared at the trial court the 16th day of September, 1988, at the time scheduled for trial. Counsel for the plaintiff represented to the court that the parties had reached a "settlement agreement" (Trial at 3, L 8) and outlined the terms to the court. Questions arose, however, and further discussions were held off the record (Trial at 4, L 2-3), the parties went back on the record and there were additional "misunderstandings" and again the court went off the record, stating "Let me get out of your negotiation." (Trial at 6, L 25, emphasis added) The parties subsequently stated, on the record, that they understood what the agreement contemplated and the court stated it accepted the agreement; counsel for plaintiff represented in closing (at 7, L 24) "I'll draw the documents, your Honor."

Rule 4-504 Utah Rules of Judicial Administration provides as follows:

(1) In all rulings by a court, counsel for the party or parties obtaining the ruling shall within fifteen (15) days, or within a shorter time as the court may direct, file with the court a proposed order, judgment, or decree in conformity with the ruling.

(3) Stipulated settlements and dismissals shall also be reduced to writing and presented to the court for signature within fifteen (15) days of the settlement and dismissal.

Plaintiff failed to "draw the documents" within the time prescribed and then, at a later time, plaintiff drafted and submitted to counsel for defendants a "stipulation" that was not in conformity with the agreement (See Record at 40-41 and defendant's objection paragraphs 4, 5, and 6 at Record 36-37) but had substituted Robert Williams as the party responsible in place of James Williams (there were additional albeit minor discrepancies as to details like dates payments were due and their exact amount); for obvious reasons counsel for defendant would not execute plaintiff's drafted stipulation. In the meantime defendant James Williams had tendered \$5,000.00 to plaintiff toward the settlement.

Plaintiff subsequently submitted a Verified Motion For Entry of Judgment, as against Robert L. Williams, (Record at 38) alleging inter alia that defendant had defaulted and that plaintiff was entitled to judgment for \$52,050.77. Plaintiff's mailing certificate indicates that counsel for plaintiff caused a copy of said motion to be mailed to counsel for defendant the 17th day of January, 1989. (Record at 42) Defendant timely filed a response entitled Objection To Motion For Entry Of Judgment (Record at 36); defendant's response was brief and to the point, barely a page and a half in length, explicitly pointing out, inter alia, that plaintiff was pursuing the wrong defendant and that James Williams was ready and able to tender performance but for plaintiff's

failure to agree as to the responsible party and the specific terms (dates payments due and exact amounts, etc).

No notice to submit the matter for decision was submitted pursuant to Rule 4-501(8) Utah Rules of Judicial Administration, which provides, in part, "If a hearing is not requested by the Court, counsel shall notify the Clerk of the Court, in writing, to submit the motion to the Court for decision." On January 31, 1989, without allowing defendants an opportunity pursuant to Rule 4-501(9) Utah Rules of Judicial Administration to request a hearing and without defendant's waiver of the right to a hearing the trial court granted judgment against Robert L. Williams. (Record at 45)

Settlements and stipulations are, of course, encouraged by the courts pursuant to well worn principles of judicial economy and there is a presumption as to stipulations whose terms are definite and which are either made in writing or in open court upon the record, that such stipulations are enforceable absent their being set aside for justifiable cause. See Casentini v. Hines, 625 P.2d 1174 (Nevada 1981), Dove v. Cude, 710 P.2d 170 (Utah 1985), Hiltsley v. Ryder, 738 P.2d 1024 (Utah 1987), Kinsman v. Kinsman, 748 P.2d 210 (Utah App. 1988) and Rizzo v. State, 497 N.Y.S.2d 417 (A.D.2 Dept. 1986). Stipulations and settlements, however, are no more than a form of contract (Olson v. Idaho Dept. of Water Resources, 666 P.2d 188 (Idaho 1983)) and their enforcement is subject to applicable principles of contract law.

In the case now before the court, the "stipulation" was not specifically read into the record, but consisted of commentary,

representations, discussions and questions between the court and counsel for the parties, broken by at least two separate occasions where the parties and/or counsel had discussions and negotiations off the record. It was clearly contemplated that the "stipulation" would be reduced to writing. Given the piecemeal, and sometimes incomprehensible, manner in which the agreement was presented to the court, and recognizing that the parties had a firm understanding as to the total amount and total time period in which the payments were to be made (\$15,601.50 to be paid within two years), it is entirely reasonable to conclude that defendant not only could anticipate that the specific terms would be specified in a writing (that plaintiff's counsel was to prepare) but that he could have such a writing to refer to and rely upon in carrying out performance of the agreement, and that he could not be charged with failing to perform until those specific terms were set forth in a writing.

Rule 4-504(3) Utah Rules of Judicial Administration has an obvious purpose, inter alia, and that is to avoid exactly the difficulty that arose here: if and when the stipulation is timely reduced to writing, subsequent enforcement of the stipulation if necessary is simple and straight forward. In this case, however, the party charged with preparing the writing failed to do so and in fact prepared a draft inconsistent with the agreement in a particularly important detail: the identity of the party bound thereby, and then sought to enforce the agreement as it had been incompletely and piecemeal and with obvious contemplation that it

would be reduced to writing, presented in open court; the same party declined to accept James Williams' tender of performance.

A natural prerequisite to enforcement of an oral stipulation, particularly one that is not read into the record as an integrated whole but whose terms are broken by off-the-record negotiations, is compliance with Rule 4-504(3) Utah Rules of Judicial Administration; it is not contested that the fifteen day period specified in the rule is absolute, but before a party can seek enforcement, particularly the party charged with the obligation to comply with the rule, the stipulation should be reduced to writing and an order granted adopting the stipulation as binding upon the parties. The trial court herein erred in granting plaintiff judgment in these circumstances.

Additionally, and perhaps an even more aggravating denial of due process, as guaranteed by both the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States and by Article 1 Sections 1 and 7 of the Constitution of the State of Utah, the trial court erred in failing to allow defendants an opportunity to be heard prior to judgment being entered. Pursuant to Rule 4-501 Utah Rules of Judicial Administration defendant had (including time for mailing) until the 30th day of January 1989 to submit a response, then plaintiff would have five days to reply, after which one of the parties should give notice to submit for decision; defendant would have ten days from that notice to request a hearing. The defendant submitted his objection the 27th day of January, 1989. The court, however, proceeded to grant judgment against Robert L. Williams the

31st day of January 1989. Clearly, defendants were not given an adequate opportunity to be heard; simple due process demands an opportunity to appear before the court prior to the granting of a judgment in excess of \$50,000.00. The trial court committed error in failing to allow defendants an opportunity for a hearing before the court.

Finally, on this point, it is also clear that defendant's objection was either overlooked, ignored or disregarded. The record was absolutely clear, but for plaintiff's rendering of the stipulation and the identification of Robert Williams as the defendant in the verified motion, that Robert Williams was not an involved party at that time, and in precise, simple language defendant pointed out that error in his objection. Despite the explicit and absolutely accurate point of paragraph 3 of defendant's objection (Record at 36) the trial court granted judgment against Robert Williams! It is apparent that the trial court did not consider defendant's pleading and thereby denied defendant due process.

POINT II: THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN
GRANTING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO AMEND
JUDGMENT

The trial court erred in granting judgment in the first instance, as is argued above in Point I, and therefore that judgment should not have been subsequently amended. Additionally, however, plaintiff's motion to amend was specifically based upon Rule 60(a) Utah Rules of Civil Procedure seeking correction of a

clerical error. Plaintiff's verified motion itself, together with the stipulation that plaintiff drafted, identified the defendant party as Robert Williams; Robert Williams had indeed been a party defendant previously dismissed from the lawsuit. Plaintiff did not seek judgment against James Williams in the verified motion. Perhaps counsel for James Williams is missing some intricacies of the law that counsel has not had experience with, but it seems incongruous on its face that a judgment granted based upon a verified motion against one party (i.e. Robert Williams) can subsequently be amended on the basis of a clerical error to be a judgment against another party (i.e. James Williams); that is, how can the Court grant a judgment against James Williams, by way of a Rule 60(a) motion or otherwise, when there was no motion against James Williams to begin with?

Obviously plaintiff juxtaposed the identities of the parties; defendant pointed that out in clear and unequivocal language before the original judgment had been granted. Was James Williams and his counsel charged with the duty to respond to the original motion as if it named James Williams? Was James Williams bound by the proceedings directed to his father, Robert Williams, as if they had been directed against him? It was error, clearly. It was plaintiff's error, clearly. It may have originated as a clerical mistake in plaintiff's office, but one cannot imagine a more substantive matter than the identity of a party, and as plaintiff persisted, despite being informed of the error, in proceeding against Robert Williams that does not put James

Williams on adequate notice. Plaintiff sought a judgment against Robert Williams and the court erroneously granted a judgment against Robert Williams; it was not a clerical error at that point: at the least it was an inadvertent oversight or the result of negligence; it may have been more deliberate than that, however, as the father, Robert Williams, was the party with assets and the financial ability to satisfy the claim.

The trial court effectively granted an amendment to plaintiff's verified motion to have it directed against James Williams and a judgment based upon that against James Williams. (See trial court's ruling dated July 27, 1989, Record at 90-92, where the court stated: "This court is convinced that plaintiff's 'verified Motion for Entry of Judgment' was a clerical error.") That alone is sufficient to demonstrate that the identification of parties in the judgment was not clerical error but arose from an error in plaintiff's motion! The result was to deny James Williams an opportunity to be heard on the merits!

POINT III: THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN
COMPELLING DEFENDANT TO ELECT
BETWEEN THE RISK OF JAIL OR
STIPULATE THAT IT WAS HIS SIGNATURE
ON A SUBJECT DOCUMENT

Prior to the April 1988 pretrial, plaintiff had served requests for admissions upon the defendant James Williams, including a request that James Williams admit that he signed Exhibit A attached to plaintiff's complaint. The document had been allegedly signed by Robert Williams according to plaintiff's

first complaint. It appeared to have been executed some nine years previous. The document, while it speaks for itself, is in part illegible and contains blanks and portions not completed. There is no identification of the individual that apparently did sign the document. (A copy is included in the addendum hereto.)

James Williams denied that it was his signature. He did so after receiving instruction from his legal counsel as to his obligations in responding to the discovery, including advise that he should respond truthfully according to his knowledge and belief, that it was not necessary to speculate but that if he denied facts and plaintiff was able to prevail upon proving those facts at trial he was subject to various sanctions as provided for in Rule 36 and Rule 37 Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. Counsel for defendant reiterated at pretrial that James Williams contested the issue of whether the document amounted to a guarantee, contested the issue of whether it bore his signature and contested the issue of whether plaintiff had ever relied upon James Williams in extending "K & W" credit (particularly as plaintiff had initially alleged it relied upon Robert Williams in extending the credit).

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