1989

Knight Adjustment Bureau v. Robert L. Williams and James R. Williams : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Plaintiff concedes that this Court has jurisdiction to hear this matter.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

Plaintiff submits no issues to this Court.

DETERMINATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISION OR STATUTES

- (1) Rule 60(a) Utah Rules of Civil Procedure
- (2) Rule 4-501 of the Utah Code of Judicial Administration
- (3) 78-32-1 Utah Code Annotated

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Plaintiff adopts Defendant's Statement of the case with the following amendments:

1. Robert Williams was dismissed from the case at the time the original complaint was amended to name James Williams (Record 10). Plaintiff has made no effort to collect this claim from Robert Williams, since his dismissal.

2. The stipulation upon which judgment was based was recited in open court, approved by the parties and ratified by the court. (record 35; September 16, 1988 transcript, all). The stipulation required that payment of specific amounts be paid within thirty days of that date, and is signed by Defendant's attorney

(addendum). The stipulation was not filed with the court.

3. The stipulation of the parties, notwithstanding disagreements concerning any other terms, required Defendant to pay \$6,000 by October 16, 1988 (September 16 transcript P 3 L 12-14); Defendant paid only \$5,000 on November 17, 1988 (Record 38).

4. Plaintiff submits that the stipulation does, in fact, conform to the agreement of the parties, except that Robert L. Williams is incorrectly named as Defendant.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The trial court did not err in granting Plaintiff's verified Motion to Amend to correct a clerical error in the case caption for the reasons explained by the trial court.

Defendant, James Williams, had orally agreed to the terms of the settlement; the same had been reduced to writing and signed by Defendant's attorney. Defendant had not made the payments required by the settlement, thereby triggering entry of judgment.

No prejudicial error occurred.

I. ENTRY OF JUDGMENT WAS PROPER

The September 16, 1988 transcript shows that the parties voluntarily agreed to terms in open court on that date, saving computation of the monthly payment, which was estimated. The terms were clear and uncomplicated, as the trial court noted in its Ruling on Motion to Strike (Record 91).

Plaintiff's counsel subsequently submitted a stipulation, which was signed by Defendant's attorney, though it incorrectly designates Robert Williams as defendant. It was not contemplated

that the stipulation be filed with the court. Plaintiff concedes that the stipulation was not submitted to the court for signature, but argues this is not prejudicial.

James Williams made partial payment, after the due date of the first installment, and no subsequent payments.

Plaintiff thereupon filed it's Verified Motion for Entry of Judgment on February 1, 1989 (Record 38). Defendant objected to Plaintiff's motion on January 27, 1989 (Record 36) but did not request a hearing on this matter. Judgment was granted on January 31, 1989.

Entry of judgment was proper, as Defendant had defaulted on his very first payment, notwithstanding his further and continuing default.

Defendant did not request a hearing at the time he objected to entry of judgment, and has put forward no additional arguments which Defendant might have made at such a hearing. The fact of Defendant's default is not contested. Where the facts are clear, and Defendant proposes no additional arguments, the trial court properly ruled summarily.

II. PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO AMEND JUDGMENT WAS PROPERLY GRANTED

Robert Williams was the original Defendant in this action. Plaintiff conceded that he was not a proper party and did not proceed against him. Robert Williams did not appear at the pretrial on April 25, 1988 and May 23, 1988 nor at the trial on September 16, 1988. James Williams was present on all occasions and personally agreed to the terms of the settlement in open court.

The judgment in this case was granted based upon the settlement stipulation. An error in the caption is not material to the substance of the agreement. Plaintiff submits that this error was not prejudicial to Defendant. Plaintiff had no intention of docketing a judgment against Robert Williams, who was not a party to the action and the trial court found no ill will or improper purpose in the error. (Record 61). The court, in its ruling, clearly shows that it read Defendant objection (Record 90).

III. PRETRIAL PROCEEDINGS IN THIS CASE DO NOT CALL FOR REVERSAL

During the course of the pre-trial on April 25, 1988, defense counsel, Mr. Lindsley, and the trial judge engaged in a heated exchange. As a result thereof, pretrial was continued to May 23, 1988. Defense counsel, Mr. Lindsley, on April 25, challenged the trial court, and carried that challenge beyond the bounds of discretion. The court's remarks complained of were directed to counsel, rather than to the Defendant, who conceded that the signature in questions appeared to be his (April 25, 1988 transcript P 8 L 20 - P 9 L 4).

At the second pre-trial, Mr. George Diumentti appeared with Defendant. At trial, Mr. Bruce Oliver appeared with Defendant and the matter of sanctions was not addressed. No affidavits were filed as to how the April 25 interchange may have affected Defendant's thinking in agreeing to settlement. Plaintiff submits that the discount was more persuasive.

Contempt sanctions are available to the trial court, pursuant to 78-32-1 (1)(4) UCA in the event of misconduct by either counsel

or parties, and the court fully explained it's rationale in discussing sanctions to Mr. Lindsley during the first pre-trial (April 25, 1988 transcript, P 9 L 8 - P 10 L 10).

CONCLUSION

At trial, Plaintiff's claim was substantially discounted in consideration of a settlement stipulation. The terms of the settlement were sufficiently clear and definite as to be understood by the parties and was reduced to writing. Defendant defaulted, and pursuant to the stipulation, judgment was entered pursuant to rule 4-501, without oral argument. Defendant fails to show that more could have been argued orally than was submitted in writing. Plaintiff submits that no error occurred in amending the judgment.

Plaintiff submits that Defendant's arguments are without merit. The judgment below should be affirmed, and Plaintiff should be awarded it's costs and a reasonable attorney fee.